
IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF CASS COUNTY, NEBRASKA

STATE OF NEBRASKA EX. )

REL., BRANDY JORDAN, )

)

REALTOR, ) CASE NO. CI 24-79

)

VS. ) SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT 

) AND VERIFIED PETITION

) FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS

) PURSUANT TO NEB. REV. 

THE VILLAGE OF ALVO; ) STAT. § 84-712.03, 84-1414(3)

AMANDA SHINKLE, in her official )

Capacity as Records Manager for )

the Village of Alvo, )

)

RESPONDENTS. )

REALTOR, Brandy Jordan, files this Second Amended Complaint and Verified 

Petition for Writ of Mandamus pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712.03 84-1414(3). 

Relator alleges as follows:

1. Relator is a resident of the Village of Alvo, Nebraska (“Alvo”).

2. Respondent, Alvo, is a village in Cass County, Nebraska, United States.

3. Respondent Amanda Shinkle is a custodian of records belonging to Alvo for the 

purposes of the Nebraska Public Records Act.

4. Relator is an interested person in examination of public records for purposes of 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712.

5. On February 23, 2024, Relator issued a public records request (“First Request”) 

to Alvo seeking:

“[A] copy of all emails, text messages, transcripts, written or verbal 

communications, and all documentation and recordings made during 

November 7, 2023, December 5, 2023, January 9, 2024 and February 6, 

2024 Board of Trustees monthly meetings. If you cannot provide copies, 

then I am requesting a time and date for me to come in and for myself to 

make my own copies. Before you ask for a deposit, can you provide me 

an estimate for the cost of either:  1) you providing copies and sending 

them through email or mail; or,  2) the cost of me coming down to the 

office to make my own copies.”
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6. A true and accurate copy of Relator’s First Request is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A”.

7. Alvo responded to Relator’s First Request on Sunday, March 3, 2024, well 

outside the 4-day response time requirement. Alvo informed Realtor that they 

were unable to fulfill the request and that “the Village of Alvo asks that you 

follow the proper procedures for submitting an Open Records Request as 

outlined in Ordinance No. 2024-001 Section 2. You obtained a picture copy of 

this Ordinance on Feb 18th 2024.” A true and accurate copy of Alvo’s response 

is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

8. On May 16, 2024, Realtor issued another public record request (“Second 

Request”) to Respondents seeking:

“…[A] copy of all records pertaining to the Alvo Fire Department, 

specifically financial statements, records of all current fire department 

members and their roles within the department, all agendas and meeting 

minutes, dues paid by members of the department, records detailing 

insurance purchased for the department and its members as well as any 

potential benefits they are receiving, as well as agendas and meeting 

minutes. The dates for these records requests would be all dates from 

January 1, 2017 through to present day.  In addition to these records, I 

also need to obtain copies of Board of Trustees financial records of funds 

attributed to fire department purchases through the village General 

Fund, during this same time period. I also need to obtain copies of 

Meeting Minutes, Agendas, and all supporting documents presented 

during these meetings for the Alvo Board of Trustees with the dates 

beginning January 1, 1997 through to December 31, 2001 as well as 

July 1, 2019 through to December 31, 2007.

9. On May 26, 2024, Respondents responded to Realtor’s Second Request outside 

of the 4-day statutory deadline claiming that Alvo has a month to make such 

responses because the Village of Alvo’s hours of operation are Sunday(s) from 

12 P.M. to 4 P.M. A true and accurate copy of Alvo’s response is attached hereto 

as Exhibit “C”.

10. Respondents also quoted an unreasonable number of over $2,500 to access 

such documents and to make her own personal copies.

11. Respondents then said it would take them until December 2024 to fulfill the 

Second Request.

12. Respondents request that this Court rule the 100 hour time quoted for the 

custodian of the records to comply with Nebraska law is unreasonable and that 

the Village of Alvo does not have an entire month to make a response to records 

requests pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712. Realtor also asks that the Court 

evaluate whether it is reasonable for the Village to take over 5 months to satisfy 

the request.
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13. On May 24, 2024, Realtor via her attorney, John D. Cartier, sent a third public 

records request and a cease and desist notice (“Third Request”) to take down 

several defamatory posts made about Realtor on the Village of Alvo’s website at 

Alvo.gov. Letter attached hereto as Exhibit “D”.

14. The Third Request asked that the Respondents produce, “[A] copy of all 

documentation, records, notes, communications, emails, text, calls, and 

recordings made as a result of the two articles written about Brandy Jordan on 

the village of alvo's website at https://www.alvo.gov/general-5.” And also 

requested, “[A] copy of all documentation, records, notes, communications, 

emails, text, calls, and recordings showing that the Alvo Volunteer Fire 

Department (“Fire Department”) was reinstated after they were dissolved by the 

Village Board of Trustees on or about December 2019.”

15. Respondent’s reply, attached hereto as Exhibit “E”, claim that there were no 

documents that existed for either request, and they further allege that the “Alvo 

Volunteer Fire Department was not subject to being dissolved, and therefore, 

reinstatement has not and would not be required.”

16. Realtor knows that this isn’t the truth, because she has an email dated 

December 28, 2019, from Kassi Koerner, Senior Public Safety Dispatcher from 

Lincoln Police Department/911 Communications Center saying, “Robin LaPage 

(402-540-5646) who is a chairman, contacted dispatch today and advised that 

she was putting Alvo Fire & Rescue out of service indefinitely. No one should be 

putting them back in service unless it is Robin. The above number is her 

cellphone.” Email attached hereto as Exhibit “F”.

17. Realtor knows that there must be some documentation from the Board of 

Trustees to reflect the decision in 2019 to dissolve the Fire Department.

18. For instance, Realtor has a recording of an Alvo Board of Trustees meeting in 

January 2020, where the Nebraska State Auditor came to discuss the issues of 

misuse of public funds, the chair of the board of trustees, Robin LaPage, 

announced during the meeting that she, “Put us out of service until further 

notice.”

19. Realtor requests this Court to demand Respondents to comply with its record 

requests for both the defamatory posts made online about Realtor, and to 

produce documentation governing the status of the Fire Department.

20. Alvo has been in violation of not only laws governing open records requests, 

but also many other state statutes on municipal governance. This includes 

falsifying public records in an attempt to make it seem like the Board has 

conformed to relevant statutes. Realtor has video evidence to show 

discrepancies between recorded meetings, and how the meeting minutes were 

then provided and subsequently altered.

21. On November 2, 2023, during an emergency meeting (“Nov. 2nd Meeting”) all 

attendees were identified in violation of Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-1412. Meeting 

minutes attached hereto as Exhibit “G”.
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22. On November 14, 2023, (“Nov. 14th Meeting”) all meeting attendees were 

identified including minors and those who did not address the body in violation 

of Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-1412. Attached hereto as Exhibit “H”.

23. There was also no mention of a notice or where the agenda was posted within 

the community in violation of § 84-1411(d) for both the Nov. 2nd and 14th 

Meetings.

24. During the Nov. 14th Meeting the agenda was amended to add item #19, 

“discuss, consider, and vote on approval of October 3rd, 2023, Board of Trustee 

Meeting Minutes.” This was not an emergency item and is a violation of § 

84-1411(e).

25. On the Nov. 14th Meeting there was also no mention of a vote taken to start an 

executive session of the Board, this was a violation of § 84-1410(2); this also 

happened during the Nov. 2nd Meeting.

a. The Nov. 14th Meeting did not include a vote record taken for the 

executive session, instead, Chairman Sullivan made a motion but there 

was no record of a vote. Community members were then told to get up 

and leave after Ms. Schueth told them they needed to leave. There was no 

timestamp provided for when the Board voted to go into executive 

session, but there is one for when they returned.

b. After the board members came back from the executive session, they 

voted in 10 Exhibits to Village of Alvo records and listed them as  

2023-11-1, 2023-11-2, 2023-11-3, 2023-11-4, 2023-11-5, 2023-11-6, 

2023-11-7, 2023-11-8, and 2023-11-10.

c. Agenda item #21 was then added to the agenda during the meeting in 

violation of § 84-1411(e).

26. On the December 5, 2023 meeting (“Dec. Meeting”) once again all the 

community members including minors and those who did not address the 

Board were identified by name in the minutes. Meeting minutes attached hereto 

as Exhibit “I”.

27. There was no mention of where the notices were published in the Dec. Meeting 

minutes nor was this addressed during the meeting. 

a. The Dec. Meeting Minutes also indicate that “III. Review of Previous 

minutes / The minus of the previous meeting were reviewed and 

approved by a majority of those present. Vote: Yes- 3 No- 0 Abstain: 1 

(Cathina Schueth) Absent: Larry Langer". 

b. But then there is Agenda Item #2 with another vote for the same thing.

28. During the Dec. Meeting there was no information on the agenda about an 

executive session that was called for “The Discussion and Review of the Village 

of Alvo’s Investigation.”

a. There was no time when the Board voted to go into executive session in 

violation of  § 84-1412(2). Instead, Chairman Sullivan states that he is 

making a motion to go into executive session, and no one motions 

otherwise despite how provided meeting minutes were written. 
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Community members were then instructed to leave after Chairman 

Sullivan announces the next meeting.

b. Page 5 of the meeting minutes reads: “*Village of Alvo Meeting Minutes 

typically completed by clerk/treasurer, clerk/treasurer currently vacant, 

duty and responsibility completed by Trustee Member present at 

meeting. Minutes approved by: Board of Trustees members (Devon 

Sullivan, Gary Estes, Roger Paul)(to be reviewed and corrected upon 

approval) *Trustee Cathina Schueth abstains. We the Village of Alvo 

Board of Trustees, do hereby certify the above minutes taken by Cathina 

Schueth are true and correct to the best of our knowledge and are part of 

the official records of this office.”

c. The Dec. Meeting minutes were then altered from what was posted 

publicly in the village office prior to the meeting on April 2, 2024, but 

were never posted in the Ashland Gazette.

29. On January 9, 2024, (“Jan. Meeting”) once again all the community attendees 

are identified whether or not they addressed the Board. Meeting minutes hereto 

as Exhibit “J”.

30. There was again no mention of where the Jan. Meeting’s Notice was published. 

Also, for the entire month of January there was no notice or minutes published 

in the Ashland Gazette, there was only a notice posted in the window of the 

village office 24 hours before the meeting, a violation of § 84-1411.

31. During the Jan. Meeting, the Board violated § 84-1412 when Relator was 

identified by name for an open records request she made, where they allege she 

did not comply with their requirement of a $50 deposit even though she was not 

in attendance at the meeting.

32. According to Jan. Meeting’s minutes, the time of the executive session was not 

stated in violation of § 84-1410.

a. Once again, the executive session had no votes recorded on camera as 

was the case with the prior meetings.

33. On February 6, 2024, (“Feb. 6th Meeting”) Ordinance 2024-001, Resolution 

2024-001, and 2024-002 were voted in with only 3 of 5 Board members present 

including the Chairman. There was no majority present pursuant to Neb. Rev. 

Stat.  § 17-616. Meeting minutes hereto as Exhibit “K”. The minutes, and 

video recorded meeting, also indicated that the next meeting was to be held on 

May 7, 2024, not once mentioning a February 20th meeting the Board 

subsequently held.

34. Alvo also violated the reading mandate required by § 17-614 during the Feb. 

6th Meeting. Alvo did not read the Ordinance or Resolutions as mandated 

during the first half of the meeting before the Board of Trustees went into 

executive session.

35. During the Feb. 6th Meeting all of the attending members of the public were 

once again identified even if they did not address the Board.
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36. The location of the meeting notification within the Village was also not provided 

during the Feb. Meeting.

37. There was no mention of waiving the three readings by anyone in the meeting 

up until Chairman Sullivan adjourned the meeting to reopen back into 

executive session. According to the minutes, which were voted in as record and 

published, the three readings were waived at the time that the votes were cast, 

however, that is not factual, there is video evidence to show the readings were 

never discussed up through the meeting until Chairman Sullivan dismissed the 

meeting and resumed into executive session.

38. Page 5 of the Feb. 6th Meeting Minutes reads: “Minutes completed by: 

Clerk/Treasurer Amanda Shinkle. We, the Village of Alvo Board of Trustees, do 

hereby certify the above minutes taken by Amanda Shinkle true and correct to 

the best of our knowledge and are part of the official records of this office.”

39. According to the agenda, attached hereto as Exhibit “L”, as it was presented 

to the public for the Feb. 20th Meeting, the purpose of that executive session 

was to discuss the “Workshop with GBE CPA for the Village of Alvo to improve 

internal process and procedures.”

40. According to Cathina Schueth’s notes, she made a motion to add a secondary 

executive session with no indication on the subject matter. Schueth’s notes 

attached hereto as Exhibit “M”. The notes indicated that the Board added to 

the agenda a secondary executive session to discuss a matter with no subject 

matter identified. The Agenda has the first listed as “Adjourn to Executive 

Session for the Workshop with GBE CPA for the Village of Alvo to improve 

internal processes and procedures.” 

a. That amendment created two separate subjects for executive sessions; it 

is unclear whether that means there were two executive sessions or if 

one session included two subject matters.

b. There was no emergency that warranted amending the agenda for a 

second executive session in violation of § 84-1411.

41. During the Feb. 6th Meeting, minor children and those who did not address 

the Board were identified in the meeting minutes.

42. There has only been notice of meetings published with the Ashland Gazette for 

Dec. 5th, Jan. 9th, and Feb. 20th Meetings.

43. The ordinances and resolutions that were passed during the Feb. 6th Meeting 

were not given 15 days after passing to become effective in violation of  § 

14-211. This was also the case for additional ordinances and resolutions since 

October.

44. Furthermore, since Ordinance 2024-001 and Resolutions 2024-001 and 

2024-002 were not read three times, procedure to waive the readings was not 

done at the time of vote, and there were less than the majority of the Board 

present (3 out of 5), these ordinances should be nullified.
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a. If nullified, then these topics can never be voted on again by the Board 

pursuant to  § 84-1411, and Wolf v. Grubbs, 17 Neb. App. 292, 759 

N.W.2d 499 (2009).

45. On March 5, 2024, (“March Meeting”), substantial violations of Nebraska law 

again took place. Meeting minutes hereto as Exhibit “N”.

46. During the March Meeting, all attendees were identified by name including 

minor children.

47. The March Meeting’s minutes also made no record of where the statutorily 

required notices were published. This meeting was not published in the 

Ashland Gazette where other notices have been placed.

48. The March Meeting did not include a vote record taken for an executive 

session. Chairman Sullivan once again makes a motion to adjourn, no votes are 

taken, and then community members are told to leave.

49. The March Meeting’s minutes read “The minutes of the previous meeting were 

reviewed and approved by a majority of those present.” This also happened 

during the Jan. and Feb. Meetings.

a. This does not identify what minutes were approved, as the Feb. 20th 

Meeting and March Meeting minutes were approved during the April 

meeting.

b. Based on video recordings of the March Meeting, there was never a 

verbal motion to approve any minutes.

50. During the March Meeting, Ms. Schueth motions to amend the agenda to add 

various payments as well as changing verbiage to vote to hire a village attorney. 

This could not have been an emergency in nature as the village had not had an 

attorney during the past 3 years. The payments were also not an emergency.

51. During the March Meeting, Realtor asked three questions all within a three 

minute time period that was permitted to address the Board. Realtor then 

asked her third question which questioned what gave the Board of Trustee’s 

authority to override state statute for open records. Realtor then was told that it 

was not a Q&A by Mr. Paul, despite all other community members being able to 

ask questions of the Board and receive responses.

52. The March Meeting’s minutes were then amended after it was posted and after 

it was handed out to community members during that meeting and prior to the 

April 2, 2024 meeting. During this meeting and after the minutes for February 

meetings were voted to be approved by the Board, Realtor stated that she 

believed the meeting was violating the Open Meetings Act, that she believed it to 

no longer be a legal meeting, and suggested that all in attendance leave. 

a. As noted in the March meeting minutes, clerk Amanda Shinkle notes 

that “Citizen Robin LaPage and Brandy Jordan disrupted the meeting to 

announce that amending the agenda before approval of the agenda is not 

allowed and makes the meeting illegal. Brandy Jordan states that it was 
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an illegal action and that everyone should leave due to the meeting being 

illegal. Brandy and Robin are the only two that left the Village Hall.” 

53. On April 2, 2024, (“April Meeting”), the Board approved minutes for both Feb. 

and March Meetings as Agenda items 1 and 2. Meeting minutes attached hereto 

as Exhibit “O”.

54. The April Meeting, and especially the Agenda item #4 should be nullified 

because they could not have approved Ms. Schueth or Chairman Sullivan as 

firefighters without a proper quorum. They voted Ty Fellhaufer, Scott Barnes, 

and Elliot Silva as members of the Fire Department but when it came time to 

vote for Devon Sullivan and Cathina Schueth, the Board acknowledged that 

they did not have quorum with Sullivan and Schueth recused themselves from 

the vote. So in effect, they acknowledged that they did not have a quorum with 

only three votes.

a. It was also during this April Meeting, once the Board voted to approve 

the minutes of the previous meetings, that the Realtor stated that she 

believed the meeting to be in violation of the Open Meetings Act, that she 

believed it was no longer a legal meeting, and suggested that everyone in 

attendance leave. 

b. The Board stated in the minutes that, “citizen Brandy Jordan outburst 

declaring “the meeting is now an illegal meeting and I suggest everyone 

leave.”

55. During the April Meeting, the Board also voted to designate a checking account 

as a community events account, and voted to use $1,000 of the funds to pay for 

a raffle, to take place during Alvo Days in June. Attached hereto as Exhibit 

“P”, is a notice showing the raffle giving away a “home defense 12 gauge pump 

shotgun” and a “Community Preparedness Training Center, LLC, 10 - One Day 

Passes” hosted by Board Member Larry Langer, and former member of the Oath 

Keepers, an American far-right anti-government militia whose leaders have 

been convicted of violently opposing the government of the United States, 

including the transfer of presidential power as prescribed by the United States 

constitution. 

a. This Raffle was scheduled to take place June 1, 2024.

56. Pursuant to Chapter 35: Charitable Gaming Regulations – Lotteries & Raffles, 

Section 400.11, "No county or incorporated municipality may authorize a lottery 

or raffle which has not been approved and licensed by the Department."

57. On May 20, 2024, the Board of Trustees had an emergency meeting (“May 

Emergency Meeting”).

58. For this meeting, notice of the meeting was published but was only three hours 

before the meeting. And the May Emergency Meeting minutes were published in 

the Ashland Gazette on June 21, 2024.

59. The Public Records Act strictly states the requirements for the response time 

and the manner of addressing public records requests. Even if the Village 
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Ordinance was found to somehow supersede Nebraska law, it is apparent that 

the ordinances were passed in violation of Nebraska law, rendering them void.

60. Relator is entitled by law to a proper response to the Request.

61. Alvo violated Relator’s rights under the Public Records Act by providing legally 

insufficient and invalid answers.

62. Relator further alleges that all documents responsive to its requests are “public 

records” under the Nebraska’ Public Records Act.

63. Relator also notes that since approximately October 2023, since Cathina 

Schueth began to run the Board, every community member who attends 

monthly Board meetings is identified in the minutes whether or not the person 

actually addresses the body, including minor children as evidenced in minutes 

posted from the Feb. 6th Meeting.

64. Realtor requests that this Court issue a peremptory writ of mandamus to 

Respondents commanding them to provide a legally accurate cost estimate in 

response to Relator’s Request, particularly addressing the question of the costs 

associated with the Realtor going in person and making copies during office 

hours with their own equipment.

65. Alternatively, if the Court declines to issue a peremptory writ mandamus, 

Relator requests that the Court issue an alternative writ of mandamus 

compelling Respondent either to immediately provide the records requested by 

Relator, including a legally sufficient cost estimate, or show cause by a date 

certain why they decline to provide a legally sufficient cost estimate by promptly 

answering the allegations in the mandamus petition and this Complaint, and 

upon the filing of such Answer, to set a date for the trial of this case at the 

earliest practicable date.

66. Relator also requests that this court issue an order declaring void any open 

meetings and therefore City Ordinances and resolutions that are found to have 

been passed in violation of Nebraska law, including Ordinance 2024-001, 

Resolutions 2024-001, and 2024-002. Relator also further requests that the 

subject matter of any Ordinances and Resolutions passed during a voided 

meeting be disqualified from ever again being brought to a matter of a vote from 

the Alvo Board of Trustees.

67. Relator requests that this court issue an order to Alvo to immediately stop all 

practices found in violation of Nebraska law, including reading into the meeting 

minutes all attendees, even those who do not address the body, during public 

meetings pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-1412(3).

68. Realtor notes that following her filing the Petition on March 6, 2024, she 

received in the mail a letter requesting an annual pet licensing registration fee 

and late fee for payments past March 4, 2024.

a. Realtor also received a copy of the village ordinance which does not state 

a dollar amount for pet registration or indicate any late fee.

b. Realtor acknowledges that a dollar amount for pet registration is not 

listed in village ordinance until the master fee schedule was unlawfully 
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passed during the February 6th Meeting without a proper quorum and 

other violations of open meeting statutes.

c. On April 14, 2024, Realtor visited the village office to verify that other 

delinquent letters had been sent out. 

i. Ms. Shinkle during the encounter stated to the Realtor she does 

not keep a clerk’s journal, she only keeps an excel file of her hours 

worked. She also confirmed they do not do a clerk’s report.

ii. This practice by Ms. Shinkle would appear to violate Neb. Rev. 

Stats. §§ 17-605, 606.

69. Pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. § 84-1414(4) Relator requests that this Court refer 

to the Cass County Attorney for prosecution any member of the public body 

who has knowingly violated or conspires to violate or who attends or remains at 

a meeting knowing that the public body is in violation of any provision of the 

Open Meetings Act as they shall be guilty of a Class IV misdemeanor for a first 

offense and a Class III misdemeanor for a second or subsequent offense.

70. Relator also requests this Court refer for prosecution any public records which 

are found to have been altered pursuant to § 28-911.

71. Relator also requests this Court to address the violations of Nebraska 

Charitable Gaming Regulations by the Defendants hosting an illegal raffle using 

public funds.

72. The Village of Alvo ended up having the raffle hosted by the Village of Alvo and 

the Alvo Fire Department. Initially a Nonprofit Organization (“NPO”) was to 

funnel the funds raised as the Fire Department has no raffle designated 

account but representatives of the NPO made the decision to not partake. 

73. Instead, the Village of Alvo made the decision to funnel those funds to the Fire 

Department instead according to a letter issued on alvo.gov. 

74. It was during the Alvo Days where the recently acquired fire truck was 

debuted, though there have been no public votes to purchase said vehicle by 

the Board of Trustees. 

75. Furthermore, public property was also used for the Alvo Days event, showing 

that any money raised during the event was public funds that are subject to 

having to be voted upon before being used.

76. To date, there has been no evidence of where those funds were deposited nor 

any announcement of how much was raised. As evidenced by the meeting from 

December 2019, the Fire Department accounts have always been under village 

control meaning that they are public funds to be spent through public votes. 

77. There has never been a public vote made by the Board to spend a cent on the 

Fire Department. The closest they have gotten is an announcement made by 

Chair Sullivan that the amount received from Glantz which was deposited into 

the village General account was moved to the Fire Department account as 

evidenced in the minutes from May 2, 2023. 
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78. There was no vote taken to do so, only an announcement. According to the 

2023 audit waiver, those funds have been spent but there has never been a 

public vote taken to spend them.

79. It has come to the attention of Realtor that Larry Langer, a member of the 

Board of Trustees, does not live at an Alvo address he claims is his residence. 

80. Mr. Langer claims he resides on 310 Harrison St., commercial property. The 

Register of Deeds shows that 310 Harrison St., was sold to Grizzly Holdings, 

LLC.

81. Realtor and her attorney both contacted Alli Beach of Grizzly Holdings, LLC, 

and she confirmed that there is nobody living at that address.

82. Pursuant to  § 23-2908, all trustees must be a resident of the township for the 

board they serve on.

83. Realtor requests this Court hold that Mr. Langer is not a lawful member of the 

Board of Trustees; subjecting all meetings and votes he has been a part of to be 

voided.

84. Relator requests that this matter “take precedence on the trial docket over all 

other cases… to be assigned for hearing, trial, or argument at the earliest 

practicable date and [be] expedited in every way” pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 

84-712.03(3).

85. Realtor requests that the Court assess against Respondents reasonable 

attorney fees and other litigation costs reasonably incurred by Relator under 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-712.07 and under the relevant Nebraska Open Meetings 

Act statutes

86. Since moving to Alvo on or about August 2020, Realtor and her family have 

been retaliated against by the Village of Alvo and its officials after engaging in 

her first amendment right to free speech.

87. Right after Realtor began going to Board of Trustees meetings in 2021, and 

expressing her opinion on how things were being run, and after creating a 

website that discussed the Village of Alvos matters, she was immediately 

retaliated against, and has since been dealing with overt actions of retaliation 

from the Respondents.

88. On June 29, 2021, Larry Langer attempted to run over Realtor’s husband, 

Nathan Jordan, and another party Dennis Tempelmeyer. This prompted a police 

reported to be filed # CS21061224

89. On November 5, 2022, Chris Juilfs drove by Realtor’s home, stopping on 

Fletcher/East 1st Street, to yell to demand at Realtor that she hand over the 

WireBuilt website she created for the Village of Alvo, stating that, “These people 

have more money” than Realtor does and that they will sue for it.  Report # 

CS22110175.

90. During a November 7, 2022, Board of Trustees meeting, the board publicly 

accuses Reatlor and her husband of stealing the website that has always been 

owned by WireBuilt. Larry Langer calls Realtor a thief, and the minutes of 

which were then voted on by all current Trustees.
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91. On November 9, 2022, Realtor woke up after the day of the election to discover 

that her car was coated in a yellow substance that smelled and looked like 

urine.

92. During Mid November 2022, Realtor received numerous emails from the 

then-village-clerk, Raider Rhotenacher, insisting the website owned by 

WireBuilt be handed over to the village or be terminated, or litigation would be 

pursued.

93. On February 18, 2024, Realtor and her husband went to make copies of the 

Village of Alvo ordinances and other documents that were denied up to that 

date, and the Respondent had both removed by the sheriff because, “They were 

not paying for those documents.”

94. On March 5, 2024, once the minutes were approved and voted in, Realtor made 

the statement that the meeting was now violating Nebraska Open Meetings Act, 

that it was no longer legal, and suggested that everyone leave. The mention of 

this in the minutes that it was a “disruption.”

95. During the meeting on April 2, 2024, Realtor waited until her neighbors asked 

their questions and got answers during public comments. Realtor than asked 

two questions: Where the model for Ordinance 2024-001 was obtained, from 

what city, and if they had obtained legal advice in creating that ordinance. She 

then asked her final question, well under the 3 minutes permitted, which was 

“What statute are the Board of Trustees is following which permits them to 

overrule state statute for open records requests?”

96. Realtor was then told by Board Member Roger Paul that this was not a Q&A as 

it states on the Agenda.

97. On May 22, 2024, there was an article published on Alvo.gov that falsely 

accused Realtor of making a fake police report and that Realtor was under a 

Cass County Sheriff’s investigation and reportedly could receive charges.

98. On May 26, 2024, there were two versions of a letter published on Alvo.gov 

with libelous claims about Realtor’s profession and her character. Realtor’s 

attorney then sent a cease and desist notice to Respondents to take it down as 

well as the May 22nd article, however, at the date of this Complaint they are 

still published online.

99. On May 31, 2024, Alvo’s new fire truck drove by Realtor’s house and the 

passenger on the back of the truck gave her house the middle finger.

100. In June 2024, while driving on Realtor’s Mule with her five-year-old 

daughter, Realtor’s spouse and daughter were then given the middle finger by 

the current fire chief Chris Juliffs as they drove by his home.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

REALTOR’S OPEN RECORD REQUESTS

101. Realtor refers to and incorporates by reference each and every allegation of 

Paragraphs 1 through 100 above as fully set forth herein. 
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102. The Respondents answers to Realtor’s First, Second, and Third Requests for 

public records is legally deficient for one or more of the following reasons:

a. Failure to respond to the requests on time;

b. Failure to provide documents that are responsive to Realtor’s Requests; 

and,

c. Providing unreasonable cost estimates in violation of Nebraska law.

WHEREFORE, Realtor respectfully pray that the Court enter issue a 

peremptory writ of mandamus compelling Respondent to provide a legally accurate 

cost estimate to Relator and provide documents that are responsive to Plaintiff’s 

record requests; or, alternatively if the Court declines to issue a peremptory writ 

mandamus, Relator requests that the Court issue an alternative writ of mandamus 

compelling Respondent either to immediately provide the records requested by Relator, 

including a legally sufficient cost estimate, or show cause by a date certain why they 

decline to provide a legally sufficient cost estimate by promptly answering the 

allegations in the mandamus petition and this Complaint, and upon the filing of such 

Answer, to set a date for the trial of this case at the earliest practicable date; orders 

the Respondents to pay Plaintiffs’ reasonable attorneys fees and court costs pursuant 

to  § 84-712.07, and which grants in favor of the Realtor and against the Respondents 

such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and equitable.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

VOIDING ILLEGAL BOARD OF TRUSTEE MEETINGS

103.  Realtor refers to and incorporates by reference each and every allegation of 

Paragraphs 1 through 100 above as fully set forth herein. 

104.  All of the Board of Trustees Meetings from November 2023, through May 

2024 were in violation of the Opens Meeting Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 84-1407 

through 1414 (Reissue 1999 and Cum. Supp. 2004), for one or more of the 

following reasons:

a. The failure to give reasonable advance publicized notice of the time and 

place of said meetings;

b. Failure to record the methods, dates, and place of a meeting’s publicized 

notice in its meeting minutes;

c. The failure to vote upon items with a legally sufficient quorum;

d. The creation and addition of an item to the agenda later than twenty-four 

hours before said meeting and without the existence of an emergency;

e. Identifying all members of the public who show up to meetings, including 

minors, even if they do not address the Board of Trustees;

f. Failure to provide three separate public meetings for Ordinance 

2024-001 and Resolutions 2024-001 and 2024-002 as well as failure to 
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vote to waive the three readings as required by (statute) for the February 

6, 2024 meeting.

105.  Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-1414 any formal action of a public body 

made or taken in violation of the Open Meetings Act shall be declared void by 

the district court if suit is brought within 120 days of the meeting of the public 

body at which the violation occurred.

106.  All these meetings of Respondents were illegal and unlawful, and as such 

all ordinances and resolutions are void, thus voiding Ordinances 2024-001, 

2024-002, 2024-003, 2024-004, Resolutions 2024-001, and 2024-002.

WHEREFORE, the Realtor respectfully pray that the Court enter a temporary 

restraining order and a temporary injunction enjoying the effectiveness of the Village 

of Alvo’s Ordinance Nos. 2024-001, 002, 003, and 004 and also enjoining the 

Respondents and their officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys from 

commencing or taking action implementing the Village of Alvo’s Ordinance Nos. 

2024-001, 002, 003, and 004 and that the Court enter a Judgment in favor of Realtor 

and against the Respondents which declares and holds that Ordinance Nos. 2024-001, 

002, 003, and 004 are void, unlawful, and of no effect, which permanently enjoins the 

effectiveness and enforcement of said ordinance, which pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 

84-1414(3) (Cum. Supp. 2004) orders the Respondents to pay the Plaintiffs' 

reasonable attorney fees and court costs, and which grants in favor of the Realtor and 

against the Respondents such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and 

equitable.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

ENJOINING INVALID TRUSTEE

107.  Realtor refers to and incorporates by reference each and every allegation of 

Paragraphs 1 through 100 above as fully set forth herein. 

108.  Pursuant to § 23-2908, all trustees must be a resident of the township for 

the board they serve on.

109.  Alvo Board of Trustees member, Larry Langer, is not a resident of the 

Village of Alvo and is therefore an illegal member.

110.  Realtor has no adequate remedy at law and will suffer irreparable injury if 

the Village of Alvo continues to operate with an invalid Trustee. Such 

irreparable injury would involve loss of effective governmental services, and 

interference with the orderly administration of government.

WHEREFORE, Realtor respectfully pray that the Court enter a temporary 

restraining order and a temporary injunction enjoining Larry Langer from participating 

on the Alvo Board of Trustees and from being able to vote on any issue or take any 

actions in connection to his role as Trustee.
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FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

ENJOINING MISUSE OF PUBLIC FUNDS

111.  Realtor refers to and incorporates by reference each and every allegation of 

Paragraphs 1 through 100 above as fully set forth herein. 

112.  According to records available to Realtor, there was a decision by 

Respondents to dissolve the Fire Department sometime in December, 2019.

113.  Since that time, there has been no public vote by the Respondents to 

reinstate the Fire Department and to create and designate a bank account or 

trust fund to handle money spent and raised by the Fire Department.

114.  Once the village received restitution paid from former fire chief Ben Glantz, 

those funds were put into the village general account. During the May 2, 2023, 

meeting, Chairman Devon Sullivan made the announcement that those funds 

were transferred from the general account to one of the two fire department 

accounts. There was no vote to do so, only an announcement. 

115.  In recent months, there was a purchase by Respondents for a fire truck at 

an undisclosed amount with no public vote. The two accounts held by the 

village for the fire department have never been voted on to be issued to use 

under a trust. Without being able to verify transactions within the four bank 

accounts held by the village, there is no way to determine how funds have been 

transferred for the fire department, which had been dismantled as of December, 

2019.

116. Realtor has no adequate remedy at law and will suffer irreparable injury if 

the Village of Alvo continues to misuse public funds. Such irreparable injury 

would involve loss of effective governmental services, and interference with the 

orderly administration of government.

WHEREFORE, Realtor respectfully pray that the Court enter a temporary 

restraining order and a temporary injunction enjoining the Village of Alvo from 

misusing public funds without votes that is required by Nebraska law.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

ENJOINING DEFAMATION BY RESPONDENTS

117. Realtor refers to and incorporates by reference each and every allegation of 

Paragraphs 1 through 100 above as fully set forth herein.

118. In May 2024, Respondents created a Village of Alvo website with the domain 

of Alvo.gov.

119. Since that time the Respondents have misused village resources to publish 

several defamatory articles about Realtor.

120. One article, entitled, 5-26-2024 Village of Alvo 2024 Alvo Days Raffle, 

defames Realtor by saying:

15



The Alvo resident claiming to be a community developer appears to lack 

the essential skills needed to promote positive growth, improvement, and 

sustainability within any community. They demonstrate a failure to 

collaborate effectively with community members, local organizations, and 

government agencies to identify needs, develop strategies, and implement 

initiatives aimed at enhancing various aspects of community life. Rather 

than promoting empowerment and inclusivity, this individual's actions 

appear to hinder progress and propagate unsubstantiated opinions 

devoid of factual basis. Unlike the ultimate goal of a community 

developer, which is to empower residents and create a vibrant, inclusive, 

and thriving community, there is no evidence to suggest that this 

individual has contributed to achieving these objectives in any 

meaningful way within the Village of Alvo.

121. Realtor has no adequate remedy at law and will suffer irreparable injury if 

the Village of Alvo continues to misuse public funds to defame Realtor. Such 

irreparable injury would involve defamation to Realtor’s character and choice of 

profession, and interference with Realtor’s practice of her profession of 

Community Developer.

WHEREFORE, Realtor respectfully pray that the Court enter a temporary 

restraining order and a temporary injunction enjoining Respondents from using 

Alvo.gov to defame Realtor’s character and profession, and to immediately remove 

such articles that references Realtor, and to issue an apology on Alvo.gov to Realtor for 

misusing public funds with defamatory acts.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

42 U.S. CODE § 1983 - FIRST AMENDMENT ACTION FOR RETALIATION IN 

DEPRIVATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS

122. Realtor refers to and incorporates by reference each and every allegation of 

Paragraphs 1 through 81 above as fully set forth herein.

123. Defendant Village of Alvo acted under color of state law by retaliating against 

Realtor after she engaged in constitutionally protected speech under the First 

Amendment of the United States Constitution.

124. Respondent, Village of Alvo, acted under color of state law by retaliating 

against Realtor through repeated instances of hostile actions towards her and 

her family and by using public resources to publicly defame Realtor.

125. Realtor’s participating during Board of Trustees meetings, running an 

informational website for the village, and her current litigation are all entitled to 

First Amendment protection as an expression of speech.
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126. Realtor has a clearly established constitutional right to express her 

disapproval and disagreement with the mismanagement of village resources and 

continued violations of open meeting and open record statutes.

127. Respondent’s actions are an adverse action taken in retaliation for Realtor’s 

exercise of constitutionally protected speech and expression.

128. The adverse actions taken against Reatltor and her family-such as public 

defamation, verbal threats, and physical threats-would substantially interfere 

with the exercise of First Amendment freedoms by deterring a person of 

ordinary firmness from further expressing disapproval and disagreement with 

Respondent’s actions.

129. As a direct and proximate result of Respondent’s violations of the First 

Amendment, Realtor has suffered irreparable harm, including the loss of her 

clearly established fundamental constitutional right to free speech and 

expression, entitling her to declaratory and injunctive relief and damages.

WHEREFORE, Realtor pray that this Court issue a temporary restraining order 

and a temporary injunction enjoining Respondents from using Alvo.gov to defame 

Realtor’s character and profession, and to immediately remove such articles that 

references Realtor, and to issue an apology on Alvo.gov to Realtor for misusing public 

funds with defamatory acts, and to stop targeting Realtor and her family with 

retaliatory acts. Realtor also requests compensatory damages to address the loss of 

her constitutional rights and emotional distress damages. Realtor also requests the 

award of attorney's fees and costs under 42 U.S.C.  § 1983(b).

PRAYERS FOR RELIEF

 WHEREFORE, Relator requests that the Court issue a peremptory writ of 

mandamus compelling Respondent to provide a legally accurate cost estimate to 

Relator and provide documents that are responsive to Plaintiff’s record requests; 

furthermore, Relator requests that the Court issue an alternative writ of mandamus as 

described above; that this Court declare void all open meetings, ordinances, and 

resolutions passed in violation of Nebraska law; this Court issue an order to 

Respondents commanding them to stop violating open records requests law, open 

meetings law, and any other relevant Nebraska statutes; hold that Mr. Langer is not a 

valid resident of the Village of Alvo and an invalid member of the Board of Trustees;, 

subjecting all meetings he has been a part of and matters he's voted on to be voided; 

refer this case for prosecution pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 84-1414(4), 28-911; that 

this Court addresses the violations of Nebraska Charitable Gaming Regulations and 

statutes governing how public funds are to be governed; that this matter be promptly 

set for trial; that this Court hold that Realtor’s First Amendment Rights were violated; 

and that the Court assess against the Respondent reasonable attorney fees and 

litigation costs reasonably incurred by Relator.
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DATED this 24th day of June, 2024.

BRANDY JORDAN,

 /s/ John D. Cartier /s/
John D. Cartier #26307

Cartier Law, LLC

PO Box 5241 

Lincoln, Nebraska 68505

(954) 319-9832

johncartierlaw@gmail.com
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John Cartier <johncartierlaw@gmail.com>

Open Records Request

Brandy Jordan <brandyjordan402@gmail.com> Fri, Feb 23, 2024 at 2:29 PM
To: villageofalvo@outlook.com
Bcc: johncartierlaw@gmail.com

February 23, 2024

Village of Alvo
SENT VIA EMAIL

To Whom it May Concern:

This is a records request pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712. I am seeking a copy of all emails, text messages,
transcripts, written or verbal communications, and all documentation and recordings made during November 7, 2023,
December 5, 2023, January 9, 2024 and February 6, 2024 board of trustee’s monthly meetings. If you cannot provide
copies, then I am requesting a time and date for me to come in and for myself to make my own copies.

Before you ask for a deposit, can you provide me an estimate for the cost of either: 

1) you providing copies and sending them through email or mail; or, 
2) the cost of me coming down to the office to make my own copies.

State law says open records requests must be filled within four business days. If you have questions about
this request, please contact me at (402)613-8369 or email at brandyjordan402@gmail.com.  You can email the
materials to me, or place them in the mail to me at my ADDRESS. My preference is a digital copy.

Thank you in advance for your assistance,

Brandy 





John Cartier <johncartierlaw@gmail.com>

Open Records Request

Brandy Jordan <brandyjordan402@gmail.com> Sun, May 26, 2024 at 5:02 PM
To: John Cartier <johncartierlaw@gmail.com>

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Alvo Village <villageofalvo@outlook.com>
Date: Sun, May 26, 2024, 4:04 PM
Subject: RE: Open Records Request
To: Brandy Jordan <brandyjordan402@gmail.com>

May 26, 2024

 

Brandy Jordan

440 East 1St Street

Alvo, NE 68304

 

RE: 5/16/2024 Open Records Request

 

Dear Brandy Jordan:

The Village of Alvo thanks you for your public records request;

[Quoted text hidden]

The Village of Alvo received your request on May 19, 2024. The Village of Alvo wishes to remind you that the Village of Alvo’s’ hours of
operation are Sunday(s) from 12 P.M. to 4 P.M. and the first Tuesday of each month from 5 P.M. to 8 P.M. with the Board of Trustees meeting
starting at 7:30 P.M. To avoid delays in responses it is suggested that consideration of these hours of operation be taken before submitting
requests.

The Village of Alvo regrets to inform you that your May 16, 2024 Open Records Request cannot with reasonably good faith efforts be fulfilled
within four business days after actual receipt of the request due to the extensiveness of your request. Additionally, taking into consideration the
Village of Alvo’s hours of operation it will be significantly difficult for the clerk/treasurer to process an Open Records Request of this volume.
Please note the four business days emphasized in your Open Record Request regarding Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712 are computed by excluding the
day the request is received, after which the designated period of time begins to run. Business day does not include a Saturday, or a day during
which the offices of the custodian of the public records are closed.

The cost of copies, even electronically provided copies, is $0.25 per page. The actual added cost of making the copies available shall not
exceed the amount of the reasonably calculated actual added cost of the copies, which includes the cost of computer time, paper, toner and
equipment used to prepare the copies. Additionally, there is payment obligations for the custodian of public records’ (Village of Alvo
clerk/treasurer) cumulative time spent determining the existence and/or locating the requested records, sealing confidential and personal
information, determining attorney/client records related to preparation for litigation, identifying any other records not deemed public records,
making copies and returning records to the proper files.

The Village of Alvo is committed to fulfilling your Open Records Request with the earliest practicable date for fulfilling your Open Records



Request being 12/8/024. With your request being 24 years of records and over 100 hours of workload, excluding the initial 8 hours, the Village
of Alvo estimates the expected cost of your Open Records Request to be $4,493.26. A deposit of 50% of the expected cost must be paid to the
Village of Alvo before the Open Records Request is filled, the remaining amount will be due upon completion and pick up/scanning/electronic
transmission/mailing of your 2Open record Request. Please note this is an estimation of the expected costs, the fees may increase or decrease.
Please let the Village of Alvo know the priority of the items in the request within 10 business days. If no response is received within 10 business
days, your Open Records Request will be withdrawn and the custodian of public records will not proceed with fulfilling your Open Records
Request.

 

 

 

Employee Job
Title

Hours Description of Work Unit Cost Expected Cost

Clerk/Treasurer

(record custodian)

100 Responsiveness review/organize $25.00 Per Hour $2,500.00

Village Attorney

 

 Responsiveness review/advise $200 Per Hour $0.00

 

 

Item Name Estimated Number of
Pages

Description of Item Unit Cost Expected Cost

1-1-2017

To

5-16-2024

616

 

77mo.s * 8 separate
records

Alvo Fire Department-
financial statements,
records of all current fire
department members
and their roles within the
department, all agendas
and meeting minutes,
dues paid by members
of the department,
records detailing
insurance purchased for
the department and its
members as well as any
potential benefits they
are receiving,

Board of Trustees
financial records of funds
attributed to fire
department purchases
through the village
General Fund

Paper copy- $0.25 Per Page

 

Postage-

USPS rate for large envelope starts
at $1.39, maximum weight is 13 oz.,
additional charges by USPS may
apply

 

 

 

Scanned/electronic transmittal-

$1.00 Per Page

 

 

Brandy Jordan scanning documents

Paper Copy-

$154.00

 

USPS Postage-
$856.24

Additional charges
by USPS my apply,
or be deduced

 

Scanned/electronic
transmittal-  $616.00

 

Brandy Jordan
scanning already
printed, stamped with
Village of Alvo seal,
and accessible to the
public with personal



already printed, stamped with
Village of Alvo seal, and accessible
to the public with personal scanner-
$0.00

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brandy Jordan scanning documents
not already printed, not stamped
with Village of Alvo seal, and
accessible to the public with
personal scanner- $0.25 Per Page

 

scanner

- $0.00

 

Brandy Jordan
scanning documents
not already printed,
not stamped with
Village of Alvo seal,
and accessible to the
public with personal
scanner

- $154.00

1-1-1997

To

12-31-2001

360

 

60mo.s * 6 separate
records

Meeting Minutes,
Agendas, and all
supporting documents
presented during
meetings for the Alvo
Board of Trustees

Paper copy- $0.25 Per Page

 

 

Postage-

USPS rate for large envelope starts
at $1.39, maximum weight is 13 oz.,
additional charges by USPS may
apply

 

 

Scanned/electronic transmittal-

$1.00 Per Page

 

 

Brandy Jordan scanning documents
already printed, stamped with
Village of Alvo seal, and accessible
to the public with personal scanner-
$0.00

 

 

 

 

Paper Copy-

$90.00

 

USPS Postage-
$500.40

Additional charges
by USPS my apply,
or be deduced

 

Scanned/electronic
transmittal-  $360.00

 

Brandy Jordan
scanning already
printed, stamped with
Village of Alvo seal,
and accessible to the
public with personal
scanner

- $0.00

 

Brandy Jordan
scanning documents
not already printed,
not stamped with
Village of Alvo seal,



 

 

Brandy Jordan scanning documents
not already printed, not stamped
with Village of Alvo seal, and
accessible to the public with
personal scanner- $0.25 Per Page

 

 

and accessible to the
public with personal
scanner

- $90.00

12-31-2007
To

7-1-2019

834

 

139mo.s * 6 separate
records

Meeting Minutes,
Agendas, and all
supporting documents
presented during
meetings for the Alvo
Board of Trustees

Paper copy- .25 Per Page

 

 

Postage-

USPS rate for large envelope starts
at $1.39, maximum weight is 13 oz.,
additional charges by USPS may
apply

 

 

Scanned/electronic transmittal-

$1.00 Per Page

 

 

Brandy Jordan scanning documents
already printed, stamped with
Village of Alvo seal, and accessible
to the public with personal scanner-
$0.00

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brandy Jordan scanning documents
not already printed, not stamped
with Village of Alvo seal, and
accessible to the public with
personal scanner- $0.25 Per Page

Paper Copy- $208.50

 

USPS Postage-
$1,159.26

Additional charges
by USPS my apply,
or be deduced

 

Scanned/electronic
transmittal-  $834.00

 

Brandy Jordan
scanning already
printed, stamped with
Village of Alvo seal,
and accessible to the
public with personal
scanner

- $0.00

 

Brandy Jordan
scanning documents
not already printed,
not stamped with
Village of Alvo seal,
and accessible to the
public with personal
scanner

- $208.50



 

 

Please note that under public records laws, the first eight hours of staff are free. The full cost for the time spent by the Village of Alvo, to retrieve
the information, is outlined above.

The Village of Alvo requires payment of deposit prior to moving forward with the responding request. Please, only send the amount of the
deposit requested as time, estimates are just estimates. The Village of Alvo will send you the final time and billing amount once the Open
Records Request  is completed.

*Please be advised that cost is an estimate. The final cost may be more, or less, depending on the actual time and cost expended by the Village
of Alvo in responding to your public records request.

If you intend to proceed with the foregoing, please send a check payable to the Village of Alvo.

All payments must be sent to Village of Alvo, P.O. Box 408, Eagle, NE 68437.

Given the volume of your request, current hours and workload of the Village of Alvo record custodian, the Village of Alvo expects to be able to
fulfill your request by 12/08/2024. However, this time frame is an estimate and may change going forward with the search and review process.

If the information is available prior to the estimated date, it will be promptly sent to you upon payment of the full balance of the costs.

 

Thank you,

 

Amanda Shinkle  |  Village of Alvo

Clerk/Treasurer

 

135 Main St| Alvo, NE  68304

Phone:  402-781-9201

[Quoted text hidden]



May 24, 2024

Ms Shinkle:

This is an open records request pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712. I am

seeking a copy of all documentation, records, notes, communications, emails, text,

calls, and recordings made as a result of the two articles written about Brandy Jordan

on the village of alvo's website at https://www.alvo.gov/general-5.

The two articles are:

● 5-22-2024 Fraudulent Report Cass County Police Report (Redacted)

https://journalstar.com/ www.facebook.com/

● 5-26-2024 Village of Alvo 2024 Alvo Days Raffle firearmlaws_2016.pdf

(nebraskalegislature.gov) CHP Frequently Asked Questions | Nebraska

State Patrol rafflact.pdf (nebraska.gov)

I am also requesting a copy of all documentation, records, notes,

communications, emails, text, calls, and recordings showing that the Alvo Volunteer

Fire Department was reinstated after they were dissolved by the Village Board of

Trustees on or about December 2019.

If possible, I would like an electronic copy, however, if there is a substantial cost

estimated in obtaining copies, I would like to be able to make my own copies using my

own equipment pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat 84-712.2, so please ensure that official

documents are correctly stamped with the village seal and are available on hard copy

in order for me to scan them.

State law states that open records requests must be filled within four business

days. If you have questions about this request, please contact me via email at

johncartierlaw@gmail.com.

Furthermore, this email also serves as a Cease and Desist Notice, we demand

that you take down these libelous articles and stop posting defamatory lies about Mrs.

Jordan or we will be forced to take additional legal action.

Thank you,

John D. Cartier

https://www.alvo.gov/general-5


John Cartier <johncartierlaw@gmail.com>

Open Records Request 5/24/24 and Cease and Desist Notice

Alvo Village <villageofalvo@outlook.com> Tue, Jun 4, 2024 at 8:26 PM
To: John Cartier <johncartierlaw@gmail.com>

June 4, 2024

 

John D. Cartier on behalf of;

 

Brandy Jordan

440 East 1St Street

Alvo, NE 68304

 

RE: 5/24/2024 Open Records Request and Cease and Desist Notice

 

Dear John D. Cartier/Brandy Jordan:

The Village of Alvo thanks you for your public records request;

 

May 24, 2024 

 

 Ms Shinkle: 

 This is an open records request pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712. I am seeking a copy of all documentation, records, notes,
communications, emails, text, calls, and recordings made as a result of the two articles written about Brandy Jordan on the
village of alvo's website at https://www.alvo.gov/general-5. 

 

 The two articles are: 

·                     5-22-2024 Fraudulent Report

 Cass County Police Report (Redacted) 

      https://journalstar.com/ www.facebook.com/ 

·                     5-26-2024 Village of Alvo 2024 Alvo Days Raffle 

      firearmlaws_2016.pdf (nebraskalegislature.gov) 

 CHP Frequently Asked Questions | Nebraska State Patrol 



 rafflact.pdf (nebraska.gov)

 

 I am also requesting a copy of all documentation, records, notes, communications, emails, text, calls, and recordings showing
that the Alvo Volunteer Fire Department was reinstated after they were dissolved by the Village Board of Trustees on or about
December 2019. 

 

 If possible, I would like an electronic copy, however, if there is a substantial cost estimated in obtaining copies, I would like
to be able to make my own copies using my own equipment pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat 84-712.2, so please ensure that official
documents are correctly stamped with the village seal and are available on hard copy in order for me to scan them. 

 

 State law states that open records requests must be filled within four business days. If you have questions about this request,
please contact me via email at johncartierlaw@gmail.com. 

 

 Furthermore, this email also serves as a Cease and Desist Notice, we demand that you take down these libelous articles and
stop posting defamatory lies about Mrs. Jordan or we will be forced to take additional legal action. 

 

 Thank you, 

 

 John D. Cartier

 

 The Village of Alvo received your request on May 26, 2024. The Village of Alvo wishes to remind you that the Village of Alvo’s’ hours of
operation are Sunday(s) from 12 P.M. to 4 P.M. and the first Tuesday of each month from 5 P.M. to 8 P.M. with the Board of Trustees meeting
starting at 7:30 P.M.  Please note that the Village of Alvo was closed June 2, 2024. To avoid delays in responses it is suggested that
consideration of these hours of operation be taken before submitting requests. Please note the four business days emphasized in your Open
Record Request regarding Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712 are computed by excluding the day the request is received, after which the designated period
of time begins to run. Business day does not include a Saturday, or a day during which the offices of the custodian of the public records are
closed.

 The Village of Alvo will address your May 24, 2024, Open Records Request in three parts; 1a, 1b, and 2.

 "This is an open records request pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712. I am seeking a copy of all documentation, records, notes,
communications, emails, text, calls, and recordings made as a result of the two articles written about Brandy Jordan on the village of alvo's
website at https://www.alvo.gov/general-5."

Part 1a) 5-22-2024 Fraudulent Report

Part 1b) 5-26-2024 Village of Alvo 2024 Alvo Days Raffle 

 Addressing Part 1a) The Village of Alvo regrets to inform you that the village "Records Manager" is unable to provide any records you are
seeking as they do not exist. 

 Addressing Part 1b) The Village of Alvo regrets to inform you that the village Records Manager is unable to provide any records you are
seeking as they do not exist. 

Part 2) I am also requesting a copy of all documentation, records, notes, communications, emails, text, calls, and recordings showing that the
Alvo Volunteer Fire Department was reinstated after they were dissolved by the Village Board of Trustees on or about December 2019.

 Addressing Part 2) The Village of Alvo regrets to inform you that the village Records Manager is unable to provide any records you are



seeking as they do not exist. The Village of Alvo would like to clarify that the Alvo Volunteer Fire Department was not subject to being dissolved,
and therefore, reinstatement has not and would not be required. However, your client, Brandy Jordan has been previously provided Village of
Alvo agendas and minutes for the Board of Trustees meetings on or about December 2019. To be specific, Brandy Jordan was sent 08-06-2019,
09-03-2019, 09-17-2019, 10-01-2019, 11-05-2019, 12-3-19, 01-07-2020, 02-04-2020, 03-03-2020, 04-07-2020, 05-05-2020, 06-09-2020, 07-12-
2020, Village of Alvo Board of Trustees agendas and minutes on June 1, 2023. Now to address the village seal requested, as visually seen on
the documents provided to Brandy Jordan on June 1, 2023, they do not obtain the village seal as the clerk/treasurer employed at that time was
not doing so. Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 84-712(3)(e) the Records Manager shall not be required to produce or generate any public record in a
new or different form or format modified from that of the original public record. 

 

The Village of Alvo is committed to fulfilling your Open Records Request but regrets to inform you the village Records Manager is unable to
provide you with any of the records you have requested in your May 24, 2024, Open Records Request as they do not exist.

 

 

Amanda Shinkle  |  Village of Alvo

Clerk/Treasurer

 

135 Main St| Alvo, NE  68304

Phone:  402-781-9201

[Quoted text hidden]

























































 

 

 VILLAGE OF ALVO 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA 

February 20th, 2024, at 7:30 P.M. 

135 Main Street, Alvo, Nebraska 

 

 

Call the meeting to order. 

 

Announce location of the Open Meetings Act and any public documents to be discussed at the 

meeting. 

 

Roll Call. 

 

Communication of Citizens 

Hear requests from individuals present. Each speaker will be allowed 3 minutes, no action will be taken 

on topics presented until the Board of Trustees review the topics and deem appropriate for action to be 

taken. Notice: This is a Board of Trustees meeting held in public, not a meeting of the public. There will 

be no disruption to the meeting in progress. This allotted time is not a Q and A platform between the 

speaker and the Board. You will be asked to leave if you interrupt or cause disruption.  Thank you for 

your courtesy. 

 

Consent to February 20th, 2024, Agenda. 

 

Agenda 

1. Discuss, consider, and vote to amend Village of Alvo Ordinance No. 20-02, Section 1 to amend the date 

to March 2024, Section 7 to amend the verbiage to reflect the recently passed water bill $30.00 penalty 

fee, an additional 10% penalty of the total balance for accounts with revolving debt balances from 

Resolution No. 2024-001, and to amend the PASSED AND APPROVED date to Feb 20th, 2024. Vote to 

waive three separate days of reading. 

 

2. Discuss, consider, and vote to purchase a chainsaw and/or pole saw for Village of Alvo, in an amount not 

to exceed $400 for tree maintenance purposes.  

 

3. Discuss, consider, and vote to accept Hydro Optimization & Automation (HOA) Solutions 

recommendation to the Village of Alvo for programming and power supply changes for the North well 

and South well to be blended and alternate. Proposal in the amount of $1,193.00, payment in full upon 

completion of work.  

 

4. Discuss, consider, and vote to apply PeopleService's service fees and Village penalty fees to 310 Harrison 

St. for tampering and theft of services. 

 

5. Discuss, consider, and vote to inquire and potentially obtain legal services for the Village of Alvo. 

 

6. Discuss, consider, and vote for the Village of Alvo to obtain a Municipal Website.  



 

Adjournment: The Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn to Executive Session per State Statute 

84-1410.  

Reports 

 

 

7. Village of Alvo Treasurer Report. 

Discuss, consider, and vote to approve Village of Alvo payment of the claims, wages, and taxes. 

 

 

League of Municipalities 2/14 Unknown $       421.00 

USPS                                  3/13 Postage $         11.15 

Maguire Iron                    8/22 Water Tower Repair $  10,000.00 

Burton Asphalt LLC         9/7 Road Contract $    5,000.00 

Burton Asphalt LLC       9/15 Road Contract $  10,000.00 

Burton Asphalt LLC       9/20 Road Contract $    5,000.00 

USPS                                 10/6 Postage $           6.66 

 Unemployment Auto Payment  $         56.81 

 Total $  30,495.62 

 

 

Adjourn to Executive Session for the Workshop with GBE CPA for the Village of Alvo to improve internal 

processes and procedures. 

 

Adjourn meeting. 

 

 































Certificate of Service

 I hereby certify that on Monday, June 24, 2024 I provided a true and correct copy of the

Amended Complaint to the following:

 Village of Alvo represented by Pirsch,Perry,A. (Bar Number: 21525) service method:

Electronic Service to Perry@NebraskaBusiness.Legal

 Shinkle,Amanda, represented by Pirsch,Perry,A. (Bar Number: 21525) service method:

Electronic Service to Perry@NebraskaBusiness.Legal

 Signature: /s/ CARTIER, JOHN D (Bar Number: 26307)


